


Table of Contents
November 15, 2023

Agenda Item #IIL......coiiiiiiiiiiiii i e Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #IV................... Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of November 1, 2023
Agenda Item #V..................Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of November 1, 2023

Agenda Item #VIL.....cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i e General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #111



Board of Public Utilities
Kansas City, Kansas

BOARD AGENDA

Regular Session
November 15, 2023 — 6:00 P.M.

I. Call to Order
I1. Roll Call

_____Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1

_____Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3
____Jeff Bryant, District 3

____Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1
_____Tom Groneman, District 2

____David Haley, At Large, Position 2

I11. Approval of Agenda
IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of November 1, 2023

V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of November 1, 2023
V1. Public Comments

VIL General Manager / Staff Reports

1. Sustainability Report Update

ii. Customer Service Quarterly Report
1it. Board Rules of Procedures - Resolution #5291
1v. Miscellaneous Comments

VIII. Board Comments
IX. Executive Session

X. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 11-1-23
Agenda Item #IV



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 at 5:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: Rose Mulvany Henry, President; Thomas Groneman, Vice President; Jeff
Bryant, Mary Gonzales and David Haley. Robert L. Milan, Secretary was absent.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash,
Chief Operating Officer; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service; Jerry
Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Dennis Dumovich, Director of Human Resources;
Randy Otting, Director Accounting; Chris Stewart, Director Civil Engineering; and Robert
Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Ms. Mulvany Henry called the meeting to order at 5:04 PM.
Roll call was taken. All Members were present, expect for Mr. Milan.

Item #3 —Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Groneman,
and unanimously carried.

Item #4 ~Board Update/GM Update

Mr. Groneman attended the Public Works and Safety meeting, however, there were not
any topics pertaining to BPU on the agenda.

Mr. Haley made a comment regarding a task force being formed concerning the
continuation or dissolution of the Unified Government. There was discussion regarding the
task force and how it could affect BPU.

Ms. Angela Lawson, Acting Chief Counsel, stated that no Unified Government (UG)
employee or elected official could promote the change of the structure of government. She
confirmed she would request guidance for the elected Board members from the Ethics
Administrator.

Page 1 of2



WORK SESSION MINUTES — WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Item #5 — Board Procedures Policy

The elected Board discussed a few remaining items within the Board Rules of
Procedure Policy and requested that a clean copy be sent out for a final review. It was agreed
to briefly discuss the policy during the November 15th Work Session, and to have it as an item
on the Regular Session Agenda for an elected Board vote.

Item #6 — 2024 Budget Update- Revenue Forecast

Mr. Randy Otting, Director Accounting, presented the 2024 Revenue Forecast to the
Board. He explained how the figures were generated and showed historical usage and revenue
amounts for comparison.

Mr. Otting responded to questions and comments from the Board.

Ms. Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer, provided the
Board with the 2024 Staffing budget breakdown, as discussed at the previous Work Session
meeting, October 18™, 2023.

Item #7 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:51 PM by Ms. Gonzales,
seconded by Mr. Bryant and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2


















Members of the Public atiending Board meetings shall also observe the same rules of
propriety, decorum and good conduct applicable to Members of the Board. Members of the
public desiring to address the Board shall follow the procedure set forth in Section 7.2.

Rule6 V,,,/,,,,,,,-u“{Formatted:Font: Bold

Agenda

Presentation of Agenda Items o { Formatted: Font: Bold

A AR e A Y s

In order to facilitate the orderly conduct of business, an agenda shall be
T ( Formatted: Line spacing: Exactly 16.6 pt

_prepared for each regular or special meeting.

Subject to these rules, items of business may be placed on a regular meeting agenda by any

Board Member or the General Manager.

5












]
[¥8)

74

Groups of persons shall be limited to a total presentation period of ten (10) minutes. The
Presiding Officer shall first call for representatives of groups in favor of the matter under
consideration and then for those groups in opposition to the matter under consideration.

Further time may be granted by motion.

_Disturbing Meetings

No person shall interrupt, disturb or disrupt any regular or special meeting of the Board.
Upon direction of the Presiding Officer, with approval of the Board, any such person shall
be required to leave the Board Room and, potentially, the BPU building.

e
Voting

All resolutions or motions or other items of business shall be passed by the affinmative
vote of no less than four (4) Board Members, unless otherwise provided by law.
The Presiding Officer may utilize a voice vote for the approval of minutes, agenda items,

or other matters where a roll call vote is not required by law: provided. however, that a roll
call vote shall be taken upon the timely request of any Board Member.

A vote lacking the required number of affirmative votes shall constitute defeat of an item.

A Board Member may change his or her vote only if a timely request to do so is made prior

to the announcement of the vote by the Presiding Officer.

If a quorum of the elected Board is present and a majority of the Members voting vote in
favor of a particular matter, abstentions from voting are to be counted as acquiescence with

the votes of the majority, and the action will bind the body.
Votes shall not be taken when a quorum is not present.

The Presiding Officer shall announce the vote upon every matter upon which a vote is
taken. The vote on any matter shall not go into effect until announced by the Presiding

Officer.

; { Formatted: Font: Not Bold




7.6

Motions in General

A motion is the formal statement by a Member of the Board of a proposal or question to the

Board for consideration and action.

No motion shall be debated or otherwise acted upon by the Board unless it is seconded, or
unless otherwise provided in these rules. No further action is required on a motion which
does not receive a second. Neither the maker nor seconder of a motion shall be required to
vote in favor of that motion.

When a motion is made and seconded, it may be restated by the Presiding Officer before a
vote.

Unless otherwise provided by law, a motion shall not be deemed passed unless it receives

the affirmative vote of no less than four (4) Board Members.

A motion once before the Board may not be withdrawn by the maker without the consent of

the second.

A, The following ordinary motions shall be permitted in the Board meeting as set forth in
this Section. The voting precedence of motions, when a main motion is before the
Board, and the purpose and features of such motions shall be as follows:

() Motion o adjourn.
Purpose: To terminate a meeting Debatable or
amendable: Yes.

(2) Motion to recess.

: Purpose: To permit an interlude in the meeting and to set a definite time for

continuing the meeting.

PR { Formatted: Font: Bold

e { Formatted: Font: Bold

-




(3

4)

(6)

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time or duration of recess.
Motion to Postpone to a Definite Time.

Purpose: To prevent further discussion and voting on the main motion uniil a
specified future date or event. If the motion fails, discussion and voting on the
main motion resumes. If it passes, the subject of the mainmotion shall not be
placed upon the agenda again until the specified date or event.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time.
Motion to table.

Purpose:__To set aside a pending main motion until a specific time later inthe
same meeting or the next following meeting. A motion to take from the table
shall not be required.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time.

Motion to close debate.

Purpose:__To prevent or stop discussion on the pending debatable motion or
motions and 1o bring such question or questions to vote immediately. Ifthe

motion passes, a vote shall be taken on the pending motion or motions. This
shall require an alfinnative vote of no less than four (4) Board Members.

Debatable or amendable: No.

Motion to extend debate.

Purpose:To extend the time that will be devoted to discussion of a pending
motion or to extend or remove limitations already imposed on its discussion.

e { Formatted: No underline, Underline color: Auto




(N

(8)

9N

(10

Debatable or amendable: Not debatable; amendments  are restricted to period

of time of the proposed extension.
Motion to refer to staff or Board Committee.

Purpose: To refer the main motion before the Board to stalf or a Board
Comuniittee for the purpose of investigating or studying the proposal and to
make a report back to the Board. If the motion fails, discussion or vote on the
question resumes. [f_the motion succeeds, the main motion to which it is
applied shall be placed upon the agenda after such investigation or study is
completed.

Motion to Amend.

Purpose: To modify or change a motion that is being considered by the Board
so that it will express more satisfactorily the will of the Members. An
amendment (primary amendment) may be amended by means of another
(secondary) amendment, but an amendment to the secondary amendment is not
in order. Only one primary and secondary amendment may be pending at any
one time. The secondary amendment shall be voted upon before the primary
amendment. 1f the motion passes, then the motion would be voted on as

amended.

Debatable or amendable: It is debatable unless applied to an undebatable
motion. [t is amendable.

Motion to Postpone Indefinitely.

Purpose: To postpone a main motion until further Board action. If the motion
fails, discussion and voting on the main motion resumes.

Debatable or amendable:___It is debatable but not amendable.
Main motion.
Purpose: To place the agenda item before discussion and decision.

Sl -



Debatable or amendable:__Yes.

B. The following special motions shall be peanittedpermitted in the Board Meeting as set
forth in this Section, at any time, and shall be voted upon in the order of making and

prior to ordinary motions:

Q)

4

Motion 1o suspend the rules.

Pweurpose: To temporarily suspend a specific rule adopted by the Board.
Requires an affirmative vote of no less than four (4) Board Members.

Debatable or amendable: No.
Motion to take up an item out of agenda order.

Purpose:To place an agenda item in a different position upon the agenda for
Board consideration.

Debatable or amendable: Debatable as to position, but not amendable.

Motion to consolidate agenda items.

Pwurpose: To consolidate the consideration of items upon the agenda. If

successful, the motion shall operate to take up out of order the items which are
referred to and shall be considered as moving and seconding of all bills
referred to in the motion which has not previously been moved and seconded.
A vote on such consolidated bills shall be considered a vote on both items.

Debatable or amendable__:Debatable, not amendable.
Motion to reconsider a vote.

Purpose: To permit subsequent vote on a motion which has previously been
voted upon. A motion 1o reconsider must be made

12 -

{ Formatted: No underline, Underline color: Auto




7.7

7.8

by a member who voted on the prevailing side of the vote to be reconsidered;
provided, however, that where a motion has received a majority vote in_the
affirmative. but is declared lost solely on the ground that a greater number of
affirmative votes is required by statutes for the passage or adoption of such
motion, then in such case a motion to reconsider may be made only by those
who voted in the affirmative on such question to be reconsidered . Once made
and decided in the negative, a motion to reconsider shall not be renewed.

Point of Order/Appeal

This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Any point of order not promptly made shall be out of order and deemed waived. Any member
may appeal to the Board from a ruling of the Presiding Officer. The Member making the
appeal may briefly state his or her reason for the same, and the Presiding Officer may briefly
explain his or her ruling; but there shall be no debate on the appeal and no other Member
shall participate in the discussion. The Presiding Officer shall then call for a vote inthe
following manner. “*Shall the decision of the Chair be upheld?” If a majority of the
Members present vote “ENo the decision of the Presiding Officer shall be overruled,
otherwise it shall be sustained.

This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Pweurpose: To allow a Member to address the Board regarding a question of his or her

integrity, character or motives or physical comfort.

( Formatted: No underline, Underline color: Auto

{ Formatted: Font: Bold

{ Formatted: No underline, Underline color: Auto

Y { Formatted: Font: Bold




79

7.10

8.1

Request for Information
This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To request infommation from the Presiding Officer or speaker. The request for
information shall be made through the Presiding Otficer, or directly to the speaker by leave
of the Presiding Officer.

Suggestion to Fill in Blanks
This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To insert names, figures or times into a resolution or other item that has blanks as
placed upon the agenda. After the main motion has been moved and seconded, any Member
may suggest one item or a group of items to fill in such blanks relating to the same resolution
or item. When blanks to be filled consist of a combination of items or names, the vote on
blanks shall be in order of suggestion. When blanks to be filled consist solely of sums or
times, the vole shall be taken in order with the smallest sum and longest date considered first.

Rule 8
Minutes

Application

Minutes of all regular and special meetings shall be recorded. Such minutes shall be
maintained in the administrative offices of the Board of Public Ultilities, and shall be open to
the public. The minutes shall reflect:

(1) The date. time and place of the meeting or session;

(2) The Members recorded as either present or absent:

(3) A general description of all matters proposed, discussed or decided; and
(4) Record of any votes taken.

A Board Member may request, through the Presiding Otficer, the privilege of having his or

her comments or written statement entered into the minutes



9.1

concerning any resolution or item pending before the Board. provided that the General
Manager shall abstract such verbal comments and further provided that any such written
comments be distributed to all Board Members.

Approval

Approval of minutes shall be considered at the next regular Board meeting. ltshall not be
necessary 1o read the minutes prior to approval. Such minutes may be revised by the
General Manager to correct spelling, numbering and other such technical defects. Prior to
approval, any Member may, through the Presiding Officer, request the privilege of
amending or correcting the minutes to speak the truth. If objection is made by any Board
Members to such amendment or correction, a majority vote of the Board shall be necessary
for adoption of the correction or amendiment.

Documents

Error Corrections

When a resolution or other item that has been placed on a meeting agenda contains
typographical or non-substantive syntactical errors, the item may be corrected by the
General Manager prior to or after adopted or vote without formal amendment: provided,
however, that such changes shall not alter the result intended by the Board. Changes shall
be made upon the original item included on the agenda, dated and initialed by the General
Manager, and if necessary, the agenda version of such item shall be retyped and re-executed
by the Presiding Officer and/or Secretary: such corrected Board item shall become the
original document. Changes shall be noted at the next regular Board meeting.

The Presiding Officer and/or Secretary shall sign all resolutions and other documents
requiring his or her signature which were adopted in his or her presence, unless he or she is
unavailable, in which case the next alternate Presiding Officer and/or Sceretary may sign
such documents.

.- { Farmatted: Font: Bold

R { Formatted: Font: Boid




10.1

10.3

Change in Board Rules

Failure to Observe Procedures

The provisions of these Rules of Procedure are adopted to expedite the transaction of the
business of the Board in an orderly fashion and are deemed to be procedural only. The
failure to strictly observe such rules by the Board shall not affect the jurisdiction- of the
Board or invalidate any action taken at a meeting that is otherwise held in conformity with
law.

These Rules of Procedure may be amended by the affirmative vote of no less than four (4)
Board Members.

Any one of the Rules of Procedure may be suspended temporarily by the Board providing
such suspension is not contrary to applicable law.

'{Formatted: Font: Bold

{ Formatted: Font: Bold

e { Formatted: Font: Bold





















































































Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 11-1-23
Agenda Item #V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 at 6:00 PM. The following Board
Members were present: Rose Mulvany Henry, President; Thomas Groneman, Vice President;
Jeff Bryant, Mary Gonzales, and David Haley. Robert L. Milan, Secretary connected via
Zoom at 6:23 PM.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash,
Chief Operating Officer; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Maurice Moss, Executive
Director Corporate Compliance; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service;
Darrin McNew, Executive Director Electric Operations; Dennis Dumovich, Director of
Human Resources; Douglas Bowen, Director Electric Production Operations & Maintenance;
Chris Stewart, Director Civil Engineering; Michael Oldehoeft, Superintendent Operations
WO; Steve Hargis, Supervisor Water Distribution Meters; Phillip Brown, Senior Civil
Engineer; Brandon Sisk, Project Engineer IIT; Aaron Moore, Project Engineer II; and Robert
Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on the
BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Ms. Mulvany Henry called the Board meeting to order at 6:01 PM. She welcomed all
that were listening to or viewing the meeting. She informed all that the meeting was being
recorded including video and audio. During the public comment section, those attending in
person, wishing to speak, should use the sign-up sheet at the entry and provide their name and
address. Public comments were limited to five minutes and should be addressed to the Board.
Members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the Raise
Hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment section.
No confidential information should be shared, including, account information. Staff would not
provide individual account information during an open meeting. As always, the public could
also email or call the BPU with any concerns. She informed that all participants were to act
respectfully to each other. Personal attacks or accusations would not be tolerated. All concerns
would be directed to the Board only, they would then determine staff involvement. If side
discussion was necessary, it was to be conducted outside of the Board room to avoid interfering
with presenters or other attendees. If any rules are breached during this meeting, the attendee
was subject to removal. Ms. Mulvany Henry introduced herself and the other Board Members
along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Page 1 of 4



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Roll call was taken and all Board members were present except for Mr. Milan, who
joined via Zoom at 6:23 PM.

Ttem #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Groneman, seconded by Ms.
Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Approval of Work Session Minutes of October 18, 2023

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Work Session of October 18, 2023,
by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Mr. Groneman, and unanimously carried.

Ttem #5 — Approval of Regular Session Minutes of October 18, 2023

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of October 18,
2023, by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Item #6— Public Comments

There were no visitors wishing to speak.

Ttem #7— General Manager / Staff Reports

i. 2023 3% Quarter Financials: Ms. Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Administrative Officer, presented the 2023 Third Quarter Financials to the Board. (See
attached PowerPoint.)

Ms. Austin and Mr. Johnson responded to questions and comments from the Board.

A motion was made to approve the 2023 Third Quarter Financials as presented, by Mr.
Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

ii.  Water Projects Update: Mr. Phillip Brown, Senior Civil Engineer, presented the Board
an update on how federal grants were being used to improve the water system in our
community. He showed the areas of focus for upcoming main replacement projects and
gave a timeline for the Nearman Water Treatment Plant NWTP) to complete the
switchgear and generator project. (See attached PowerPoint.) He introduced Mr.

Page 2 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

1.

1v.

Aaron Moore, Project Engineer II, and Mr. Brandon Sisk, Project Engineer III, both
local high school graduates who returned to their community to work after college.

Mr. Brown responded to questions and comments from the Board.

Mr. Johnson commented that BPU would continue to seek federal funds for
improvement projects in the community. He also applauded the engineers on both the
electric and water side for their work.

2023 Summer Internships: Mr. Darrin McNew, Executive Director Electric Operations,
presented information regarding the BPU Summer Internship Program. He gave an
overview of the program, introduced the 2023 participants and gave a summary of
some of their accomplishments during their time with BPU. As a result of the program,
BPU had hired four engineers.

Mr. McNew responded to questions and comments from the Board.

Mr. Johnson added details regarding BPU’s internship program and recruiting
opportunities. He also stated BPU was working on a scholarship program for
Wyandotte County high school students. The hope was to assist students with their
education and recruit them back into the community. He advised he would bring more
details to the Board.

Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson updated the Board on a meeting he attended
with Mayor Garner and Representative Sharice Davids regarding UG priorities which
would include BPU funding requests. He spoke about a recent luncheon held for Key
Accounts, which included top BPU industrial customers and commented on a meeting
he attended with Mayor Garner and David Johnston, County Administrator, regarding
working together on joint agreements and continued conversation on how to separate
the Unified Government (UG) charges from the BPU bill.

JItem #8 — Board Comments

Mr. Haley expressed his thoughts on the audio and video recordings of BPU’s public

meetings, separation of the UG charges from the BPU bill, changes to the Cold Weather policy
and his continued support for Customer Service improvements. He also added comments
regarding the elected Board member’s compensation and stated that he wanted a fund that he
could directly assist customer with.

Page 3 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Groneman thanked staff for their presentations and said it was enlightening to hear
local graduates being recruited back to work within the community. He also commented on the
UG working with BPU to separate the billing,

Mr. Milan said he looked forward to being back at the next Board meeting.

Mr. Bryant thanked staff for the presentations and said he was glad to see federal dollars
being used to help improve the aging water mains, especially those specific to his district.

Ms. Gonzales said she was thankful for the internship program that would allow young
people the opportunity to see what they could do at a smaller utility. She also thanked staff for
their presentations and said she was pleased to see more school districts represented at the Key
Account luncheon.

Ms. Mulvany Henry echoed other elected Board members in thanking staff for their
presentations. She welcomed Mr. Moore to BPU, and said she was happy to see the federal
funds at work in the community. She also commended Mr. McNew and staff for their internship
and recruiting efforts. She provided an update on the Community Engagement meeting and said
she looked forward to working with the Community Ambassadors. She reminded the elected
Board to complete three hours of continuing education by the end of the year, in the municipal
energy or water sector, and advised that she would be attending the next Board meeting
remotely.

Item #9 — Adjourn

At 7:24 PM a motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales
and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 4 of 4






















































































































































General Manager/Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VII



RESOLUTION NO. 5291

RESOLUTION BY THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES, AN
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/ KANSAS CITY, KANSAS REVISING AND REPLACING THE BOARD
RULES OF PROCEDURE.

WHEREAS, the elected Board has previously adopted Board Rules of Procedure; and

WHEREAS, after elected Board discussion of said rules the elected Board wishes to
make updates to said rules; and

WHEREAS, the updated Board Rules of Procedure are attached hereto;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES:

That the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities hereby replaces the previous Board Rules
of Procedure in its entirety and replaces them with the Board Rules of Procedure attached hereto.
The new Board Rules of Procedure will take effect immediately after passing.

ADOPTED BY THE ELECTED KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
The 15 ™ day of November, 2023

Rose Mulvany Henry, Board President

Attest:

Robert Milan, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:



1.1

1.2

1.3

Rule 1
Meetings

Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the elected Board shall be held on the first and third Wednesdays
of each month of the year, or as otherwise properly noticed, at the hour of 6:00 p.m.
in the Board Room of the Board of Public Utilities located at 540 Minnesota Avenue.

Such meetings shall be available to the public via telephone or web-based technology.
All meetings of the elected Board shall be subject to the Kansas Open Meetings Act.
Any regular meeting falling upon a legal holiday shall be rescheduled to another day,
and the General Manager shall give notice thereof in compliance with the Kansas
Open Meetings Act.

An alternative date for the regular meetings of the elected Board, other than the first
and third Wednesday of each month of the year, may be established by a vote of four
(4) or more Elected Board Members, and proper notice thereof shall be provided in
accordance with the Kansas Open Meetings Act.

Elected Board Members may participate any regular meeting or special meeting of the
elected Board via telephone or web-based technology, provided that such meeting is
not an executive session, and such elected Board Member has provided advance notice
to the President and General Manager.

Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by the General Manager, the President or by a vote of
four (4) members of the elected Board. A written notice of such meeting shall be
prepared and given to the General Manager and each elected Board Member via hand
delivery or electronic mail, at least twenty-four (24) hours before such meeting, unless
such notice is not practicable under the circumstances. The notice shall specify the
date, time and place of the special meeting and the business to be transacted. No other
business, other than as recited in the notice, shall be transacted at such special meeting.

The General Manager shall be responsible to give notice of any special meeting in
compliance with the Kansas Open Meetings Act.

Closed Meetings or Sessions

All meetings of the elected Board shall be open to the public; provided, however, the
elected Board may hold meetings closed to the public as provided for in the Kansas
Open Meetings Act.

No Member of the elected Board, employee of the BPU, or any other person shall
disclose to any other person the content or substance of any closed meeting or session
except as authorized by a consensus of the elected Board.



2.1

2.2

3.1

It is the policy of the Board of Public Utilities that no public discussion shall be
permitted on any personnel matter brought before the elected Board which refers or
relates to any individually identifiable employee in the employ of the Board of Public
Utilities. Provided, however, that the elected Board and its advisors may discuss such
personnel matters in a regularly convened executive session. An elected Board
Member is not permitted to attend or participate in an executive session remotely via
telephone or web-based technology.

It is further the policy of the Board of Public Utilities to enforce this policy stringently.

Rule 2
Quorum

Definition

A quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of four (4) elected Board
Members. An elected Board Member may be present by telephone or by web-based
technology, except during an executive session.

If no quorum is present and the elected Board Members present desire to request the
attendance of absent Board Members, they themselves, or by their agents, may attempt
to communicate the call to the session personally to the absentees.

Rescheduling of Meeting Due to Lack of Quorum

Whenever it appears that a quorum will not be present for an upcoming Board
meeting, the elected Board may reschedule such meeting by establishing a Special
Meeting in accordance with the procedures outlined in Section 1.2 above.

Rule 3
Presiding Officers

Election of Officers

The elected Board shall elect, from its membership at the second meeting in January
of each year, a President, a Vice-President and shall appoint a Secretary. Except in the
case of a vacancy on the elected Board, four (4) affirmative votes shall be required to
elect each officer. Terms of officers shall be limited to not more than two (2)
consecutive one (1) year terms in the same office; however, in the event no nominee
receives four (4) affirmative votes, the current office holder shall remain in office for
successive one (1) year terms until a nominee receives the requisite number of votes
at the election held at the second regular meeting in January, or the next scheduled
regular meeting thereafter.



3.2

33

5.1

Definition

Whenever the term “Presiding Officer” 'is used in these Rules, it shall mean the Board
President, and if the President is absent, it shall apply equally to the Vice-President,
and if the Vice-President is also absent, to the Secretary.

Application

The President shall preside at all meetings of the elected Board.
During the absence of the President, the Vice-President shall preside at the meetings.

In the absence of the President and the Vice-President, the General Manager shall call
the Board to order, whereupon a temporary Presiding Officer shall be elected by the
majority vote of the elected Board Members present as their first order of business.
Upon the arrival of the President or the Vice-President, the temporary Presiding
Officer shall relinquish the chair at the conclusion of the item of business before the
Board.

Rule 4
Committees

The President may recommend to the elected Board such committees of the elected
Board as may be necessary to study various issues facing the elected Board.
Permanent committees may include those deemed necessary by the President or by an
affirmative vote of the elected Board. Committees shall be responsible for selecting a
chairperson, and for determining meeting schedules and agendas.

Elected Board Members shall have the opportunity to be involved in meetings with
large industrial and commercial customers, and to meet with intervenors.

Rule 5
Duties

Presiding Officer

The Presiding Officer may move, second, debate and vote and shall not be deprived
of any of the rights and privileges of an elected Board Member. The Presiding Officer
or such person as he or she may designate may verbally summarize the item to be
voted upon immediately after it has been moved and seconded and may restate each
question immediately prior to calling for the vote. Following the vote, the Presiding
Officer or designee shall announce whether the question carried or was defeated. The
Presiding Officer shall maintain order and decorum at all meetings. He or she shall
decide all questions of order and procedure, subject, however, to the right of appeal
to the elected Board, in which event an affirmative vote of four (4) elected Board
Members shall determine conclusively such question of order or procedure.



5.2

53

5.4

6.1

Members

Elected Board Members shall preserve order and decorum. Every elected Board
Member wishing to speak shall address the chair and upon recognition by the
Presiding Officer shall be permitted to speak. Every member shall confine comments
to the question under debate and will refrain from impugning the motives of any other
Member's argument or vote. An elected Board Member once recognized shall not be
interrupted while speaking unless a point of order is raised by another Member or
unless the speaker chooses to yield to questions from another Member or unless he or
she is called to order by the Presiding Officer.

A Member, when called to order upon a point of order (Section 7.7) by the Presiding
Officer, shall thereupon discontinue speaking and the order or ruling of the Presiding
Officer shall be binding and conclusive, subject only to the right of appeal.

Elected Board Members shall notify the Board President or the General Manager at
least twenty-four hours in advance, whenever possible, of their intention to be absent.

BPU Employees

Employees of the BPU shall observe the same rules of procedure and decorum
applicable to elected Board Members. Any BPU employee desiring to address the
elected Board shall be recognized by the Presiding Officer, shall state his or her name
for the record and shall limit his or her remarks to the matter under discussion.

Individual employees of the BPU will not be allowed to make presentations before
the elected Board regarding personnel matters. All personnel matters must be handled
through the proper channels in accordance with BPU policy and established grievance
procedures.

Members of the Public

Members of the public attending elected Board meetings shall also observe the same
rules of propriety, decorum and good conduct applicable to elected Members of the
Board. Members of the public desiring to address the elected Board shall follow the
procedure set forth in Section 7.2.

Rule 6
Agenda

Presentation of Agenda Items

In order to facilitate the orderly conduct of business, an agenda shall be prepared for
each regular or special meeting.

Subject to these rules, items of business may be placed on a regular meeting agenda
by any elected Board Member or the General Manager.

4



6.2

7.1

An agenda item or other information shall be presented to the General Manager’s
office no later than 5:00 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the elected Board meeting so
that the information may be included as part of the regular agenda which will be
distributed to the Members on Friday afternoon preceding the meeting.

Unless not practicable under the circumstances, elected Board Members shall receive
available information and supporting documentation at least 48 hours in advance of a
meeting of the elected Board. If such information is available but not provided to
elected Board Members reasonably in advance of the elected Board meeting, no vote
shall be permissible except in the form of a motion to suspend these rules.

Order of Business

At any work session of the elected Board Members, unless altered by affirmative vote
of the elected Board, the elected Board shall proceed to transact the business before it
in the following order:

(1) Call to order;
(2) Approval of agenda;
(3) Agenda items; and,
(4) Adjournment.

At any regular meeting, unless altered by affirmative vote of the elected Board, the
elected Board shall proceed to transact the business before it in the following order:

(1) Call to order;

(2) Approval of agenda;
(3) Approval of minutes;
(4) Visitor comments;
(5) Agenda items;

. Substantive agenda items;
. Public comments on substantive agenda items;
. Miscellaneous comments from the General Manager/elected Board

Member comments; and,
(6) Adjournment.

Rule 7
Conducting Business

Introduction and Discussion of Agenda Items

All agenda items shall be introduced at the meetings by the General Manager. The
Presiding Officer shall call upon the General Manager to perform this duty.

The Presiding Officer shall allow each elected Board Member to speak with regard to
each agenda item. No elected Board Member shall speak more than five (5)
consecutive minutes on any one agenda item, except by unanimous consent, unless
the nature of the agenda time results in interactive dialogue between the elected Board

5



7.2

7.3

Member and a BPU employee or agent of the utility, in which case, such elected Board
Member may conduct such dialogue for a reasonable period of time. An elected Board
Member shall not speak more than once on each topic until every other Member who
so desires shall have had the opportunity to speak.

Public Discussion Procedure
A. Individual

It is the policy of the elected Board to permit comments by members of the public at
regular or special meetings in accordance with this Section. Each person desiring to
address the elected Board shall sign in with the Recording Secretary. All visitors shall
be introduced at the meeting by the General Manager. No person shall address the
elected Board without first securing the recognition of the Presiding Officer.

In the visitor comment section at a regular or special meeting, when called upon, a
visitor shall state his or her name and address for the record, state the subject, state
whom he or she is representing if he or she represents an organization or other persons,
and unless further time is granted upon motion, shall limit his or her remarks to three
(3) minutes. No questions shall be asked of a member of the BPU staff without
obtajning permission of the Presiding Officer. After the substantive agenda items are
presented, visitors may provide comments regarding a substantive agenda item and,
when called upon, a visitor shall state his or her name and address for the record, state
the subject, state whom he or she is representing if he or she represents an organization
or other persons, and unless further time is granted upon motion, shall limit his or her
remarks to three (3) minutes. When a visitor speaks with regard to a substantive
agenda item, the Presiding Officer shall not permit any communication, oral or
written, to be made or read where it does not bear directly on the agenda item then
under discussion.

B. Group

In order to expedite elected Board business and to avoid repetitious presentations
and/or comments, whenever any group of persons wishes to address the elected Board
on the same subject matter, it shall be in order for the Presiding Officer to require that
a spokesperson be chosen from the group to address the elected Board. If additional
matters are to be presented by any other members of the group, the Presiding Officer
may limit the number of such persons and limit the presentation to information not
already presented by the group spokesperson, unless overruled by a majority of the
elected Board Members.

Groups of persons shall be limited to a total presentation period of ten (10) minutes.
The Presiding Officer shall first call for representatives of groups in favor of the matter
under consideration and then for those groups in opposition to the matter under
consideration. Further time may be granted by motion.

Disturbing Meetings

No person shall interrupt, disturb or disrupt any regular or special meeting of the
elected Board. Upon direction of the Presiding Officer, with approval of the elected
Board, any such person shall be required to leave the Board Room and, potentially,
the BPU building.



7.4

7.5

7.6

Voting

All resolutions or motions or other items of business shall be passed by the affirmative
vote of no less than four (4) elected Board Members, unless otherwise provided by
law.

The Presiding Officer may utilize a voice vote for the approval of minutes, agenda
items, or other matters where a roll call vote is not required by law; provided, however,
that a roll call vote shall be taken upon the timely request of any elected Board
Member.

A vote lacking the required number of affirmative votes shall constitute defeat of an
item.

An elected Board Member may change his or her vote only if a timely request to do
so is made prior to the announcement of the vote by the Presiding Officer.

If a quorum of the elected Board is present and a majority of the Members voting vote
in favor of a particular matter, abstentions from voting are to be counted as
acquiescence with the votes of the majority, and the action will bind the body.

Votes shall not be taken when a quorum is not present.

The Presiding Officer shall announce the vote upon every matter upon which a vote
is taken. The vote on any matter shall not go into effect until announced by the
Presiding Officer.

Motions in General

A motion is the formal statement by an elected Member of the Board of a proposal or
question to the Board for consideration and action.

No motion shall be debated or otherwise acted upon by the elected Board unless it is
seconded, or unless otherwise provided in these rules. No further action is required on
a motion which does not receive a second. Neither the maker nor seconder of a motion
shall be required to vote in favor of that motion.

When a motion is made and seconded, it may be restated by the Presiding Officer
before a vote.

Unless otherwise provided by law, a motion shall not be deemed passed unless it
receives the affirmative vote of no less than four (4) elected Board Members.

A motion once before the elected Board may not be withdrawn by the maker without
the consent of the second.
Specific Motions

A. The following ordinary motions shall be permitted in the elected Board meeting
as set forth in this Section. The voting precedence of motions, when a main motion



is before the Board, and the purpose and features of such motions shall be as

follows:

(D

2

3)

)

®)

(6)

Motion to adjourn.

Purpose: To terminate a meeting.
Debatable or amendable: Yes.
Motion to recess.

Purpose: To permit an interlude in the meeting and to set a definite
time for continuing the meeting.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time or duration of
recess.

Motion to postpone to a definite time.

Purpose: To prevent further discussion and voting on the main motion
until a specified future date or event. If the motion fails, discussion
and voting on the main motion resumes. If it passes, the subject of the
main motion shall not be placed upon the agenda again until the
specified date or event.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time.
Motion to table.

Purpose: To set aside a pending main motion until a specific time
later in the same meeting or the next following meeting. A motion to
take from the table shall not be required.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time.
Motion to close debate.

Purpose: To prevent or stop discussion on the pending debatable
motion or motions and to bring such question or questions to vote
immediately. If the motion passes, a vote shall be taken on the
pending motion or motions. This shall require an affinitive vote of no
less than four (4) elected Board Members.

Debatable or amendable: No.
Motion to extend debate.

Purpose: To extend the time that will be devoted to discussion of a
pending motion or to extend or remove limitations already imposed
on its discussion.



(7

®)

©)

(10)

Debatable or amendable: Not debatable; amendments are restricted
to period of time of the proposed extension.

Motion to refer to staff or elected Board Committee.

Purpose: To refer the main motion before the Board to staff or an
elected Board Committee for the purpose of investigating or studying
the proposal and to make a report back to the elected Board. If the
motion fails, discussion or vote on the question resumes. If the motion
succeeds, the main motion to which it is applied shall be placed upon
the agenda after such investigation or study is completed.

Motion to Amend.

Purpose: To modify or change a motion that is being considered by
the elected Board so that it will express more satisfactorily the will of
the Members. An amendment (primary amendment) may be amended
by means of another (secondary) amendment, but an amendment to
the secondary amendment is not in order. Only one primary and
secondary amendment may be pending at any one time. The
secondary amendment shall be voted upon before the primary
amendment. If the motion passes, then the motion would be voted on
as amended.

Debatable or amendable: It is debatable unless applied to an
undebatable motion. It is amendable.

Motion to postpone indefinitely.

Purpose: To postpone a main motion until further elected Board
action. If the motion fails, discussion and voting on the main motion
resumes.

Debatable or amendable: It is debatable but not amendable.
Main motion.
Purpose: To place the agenda item before discussion and decision.

Debatable or amendable: Yes.

B. The following special motions shall be permitted in the elected Board Meeting as
set forth in this Section, at any time, and shall be voted upon in the order of making
and prior to ordinary motions:

M

Motion to suspend the rules.

Purpose: To temporarily suspend a specific rule adopted by the
elected Board. Requires an affirmative vote of no less than four (4)
elected Board Members.

Debatable or amendable: No.

9



7.7

7.8

(5) Motion to take up an item out of agenda order.

Purpose: To place an agenda item in a different position upon the
agenda for elected Board consideration.

Debatable or amendable: Debatable as to position, but not amendable.

?3) Motion to consolidate agenda items.

Purpose: To consolidate the consideration of items upon the agenda.
If successful, the motion shall operate to take up out of order the items
which are referred to and shall be considered as moving and
seconding of all bills referred to in the motion which has not
previously been moved and seconded. A vote on such consolidated
bills shall be considered a vote on both items.

Debatable or amendable: Debatable, not amendable.
4) Motion to reconsider a vote.

Purpose: To permit subsequent vote on a motion which has
previously been voted upon. A motion to reconsider must be made by
an elected Board Member who voted on the prevailing side of the
vote to be reconsidered; provided, however, that where a motion has
received a majority vote in the affirmative, but is declared lost solely
on the ground that a greater number of affirmative votes is required
by statutes for the passage or adoption of such motion, then in such
case a motion to reconsider may be made only by those who voted in
the affirmative on such question to be reconsidered. Once made and
decided in the negative, a motion to reconsider shall not be renewed.

Debatable or amendable: Not amendable, and debatable only as to
reopening.

Point of Order/Appeal

This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To raise a question regarding the procedure or rules followed by the
Presiding Officer. The Presiding Officer shall decide the point before further business
is conducted. Any point of order not promptly made shall be out of order and deemed
waived. Any Member may appeal to the elected Board from a ruling of the Presiding
Officer. The Member making the appeal may briefly state his or her reason for the
same, and the Presiding Officer may briefly explain his or her ruling; but there shall
be no debate on the appeal and no other Member shall participate in the discussion.
The Presiding Officer shall then call for a vote in the following manner. “Shall the
decision of the Chair be upheld?” If a majority of the Members present vote “No”, the
decision of the Presiding Officer shall be overruled, otherwise it shall be sustained.

Point of Personal Privilege

This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

10



7.9

7.10

8.1

8.2

Purpose: To allow a Member to address the elected Board regarding a question of his
or her integrity, character or motives or physical comfort.

Request for Information
This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To request information from the Presiding Officer or speaker. The request
for information shall be made through the Presiding Officer, or directly to the speaker
by leave of the Presiding Officer.

Suggestion to Fill in Blanks

This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To insert names, figures or times into a resolution or other item that has
blanks as placed upon the agenda. After the main motion has been moved and
seconded, any Member may suggest one item or a group of items to fill in such blanks
relating to the same resolution or item. When blanks to be filled consist of a
combination of items or names, the vote on blanks shall be in order of suggestion.
When blanks to be filled consist solely of sums or times, the vote shall be taken in
order with the smallest sum and longest date considered first.

Rule 8
Minutes

Application

Minutes of all regular and special meetings shall be recorded. Such minutes shall be
maintained in the administrative offices of the Board of Public Utilities, and shall be
open to the public. The minutes shall reflect:

(1) The date, time and place of the meeting or session,

(2) The Members recorded as either present or absent;

(3) A general description of all matters proposed, discussed or decided; and
(4) Record of any votes taken.

An elected Board Member may request, through the Presiding Officer, the privilege
of having his or her comments or written statement entered into the minutes
concerning any resolution or item pending before the elected Board, provided that the
General Manager shall abstract such verbal comments and further provided that any
such written comments be distributed to all elected Board Members.

Approval

Approval of minutes shall be considered at the next regular elected Board meeting. It
shall not be necessary to read the minutes prior to approval. Such minutes may be
revised by the General Manager to correct spelling, numbering and other such
technical defects. Prior to approval, any elected Member may, through the Presiding

11



9.1

9.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

Officer, request the privilege of amending or correcting the minutes to speak the truth.
If objection is made by any elected Board Members to such amendment or correction,
a majority vote of the elected Board shall be necessary for adoption of the correction
or amendment.

Rule 9
Documents

Error Corrections

When a resolution or other item that has been placed on a meeting agenda contains
typographical or non-substantive syntactical errors, the item may be corrected by the
General Manager prior to or after adopted or vote without formal amendment;
provided, however, that such changes shall not alter the result intended by the elected
Board. Changes shall be made upon the original item included on the agenda, dated
and initialed by the General Manager, and if necessary, the agenda version of such
item shall be retyped and re-executed by the Presiding Officer and/or Secretary; such
corrected elected Board item shall become the original document. Changes shall be
noted at the next regular elected Board meeting.

Authorized Signatory
The Presiding Officer and/or Secretary shall sign all resolutions and other documents
requiring his or her signature which were adopted in his or her presence, unless he or

she is unavailable, in which case the next alternate Presiding Officer and/or Secretary
may sign such documents.

_ Rule 10
Change in Board Rules

Failure to Observe Procedures

The provisions of these Rules of Procedure are adopted to expedite the transaction of
the business of the elected Board in an orderly fashion and are deemed to be
procedural only. The failure to strictly observe such rules by the elected Board shall
not affect the jurisdiction of the elected Board or invalidate any action taken at a
meeting that is otherwise held in conformity with law.

Amendment of Rules

These Rules of Procedure may be amended by the affirmative vote of no less than four
(4) elected Board Members.

Suspension of Rules

Any one of the Rules of Procedure may be suspended temporarily by the elected Board
providing such suspension is not contrary to applicable law.

12






